
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

Governance and Ethics 
Committee  
25 March 2022 

 
Time 
 

10.00 am Public Meeting? Yes Type of meeting Advisory 
group 

  

Venue 
 

Council Chamber, 4th Floor, Civic Centre 

 

Membership 
 

Chair 
Vice Chair 

Cllr John Reynolds (Lab) 
Cllr Jonathan Crofts (Con) 

 

Labour Conservative  

Cllr Dr Paul John Birch J.P. 
Cllr Claire Darke 
Cllr Celia Hibbert 
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Sandra Samuels OBE 
 

Cllr Simon Bennett 
Cllr Wendy Thompson 
 

  
 

Quorum for this meeting is three Councillors. 
 

Information for the Public 
 

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Donna Cope 
Tel/Email 01902 554452 or Email: donna.cope@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
  
Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/  

Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 550320 

 

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of 
which are displayed in the meeting room. 
 
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 

 

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

Agenda 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest  
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 
 [To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 February 2022 as a correct 

record]. 
 

4 Matters arising  
 [To discuss any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting].  

 

5 Municipal Calendar of Meetings 2022-2023 (Pages 7 - 14) 
 [To approve the Municipal Calendar of Meetings for 2022-2023]. 

 

6 Preparations for Local Elections and East Park By-Election (Pages 15 - 28) 
 [To note and provide feedback on the preparations for the forthcoming elections]. 

 

7 Constitution Review  
 [To consider the amendments to the Constitution – Report to follow].  

 

8 Annual Report on Code of Conduct Matters  
 [To receive an update on Code of Conduct matters - Report to follow] 

 

9 Update from Monitoring Officer  
 [To receive an update from the Monitoring Officer - Report to follow]. 

 



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
 

 
 

Governance and Ethics 
Committee 
Minutes - 25 February 2022 

 

Attendance 
 

Members of the Governance and Ethics Committee 
 

Cllr John Reynolds (Chair) 
Cllr Jonathan Crofts (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Dr Paul John Birch J.P. 
Cllr Claire Darke 
Cllr Celia Hibbert 
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Sandra Samuels OBE 
Cllr Simon Bennett 
Cllr Wendy Thompson 
 

Employees  

David Pattison Chief Operating Officer 
Laura Noonan 
Donna Cope 
Jacob Stokes 
 
 
 
 

Electoral Services Manager 
Democratic Services Officer 
Democratic Services Assistant 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 

Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence 

There were no apologies for absence submitted. 
 

2 Declarations of interest 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 
Minute 7 – Councillor Milkinder Jaspal stated that he requested the number of 
properties for each constituency and ward, not canvassing data. 
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 January 2022 be approved as a 
correct record subject to the above amendment. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
 

4 Matters arising 
There were no matters arising. 
 

5 Local Government Boundary Commission for England report Implementation 
Plan 
David Pattison, Chief Operating Officer, introduced the report on the Local 
Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) Implementation Plan. The 
report outlined the next steps for implementing the LGBCE recommendations and set 
out a proposed timeline for the polling district and polling place review. 
 
Laura Noonan, Electoral Services Manager, highlighted the key implementation 
dates and explained the two stage process for the polling district and polling place 
formal review.  
 
It was noted that all ward councillors would be invited to provide feedback on the 
existing polling arrangements following the May 2022 election, and that the final 
proposals would be bought back to Committee for consideration. 
 
Councillor John Reynolds moved the recommendations in the report. Councillor 
Jonathan Crofts seconded the recommendations. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the proposed timetable for the formal review be approved. 
2. That the two stages of the polling district and polling place review be noted. 

 
6 Conferring the Title of Honorary Alderman 

Councillor John Reynolds moved the recommendation in the report. Councillor 
Jonathan Crofts seconded the recommendation. 
 
Resolved:  

1. That Council be recommended to convene an extraordinary meeting on the 6 
April 2022 to confer the title of Honorary Alderman on former Councillor John 
Rowley. 

 
7 Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel 

David Pattison, Chief Operating Officer, presented the report of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel (IRP). The report outlined the review undertaken by the Panel 
on councillor allowances and detailed their recommendations. 
 
A typographical error was noted on page 78 of the report at paragraph 4.1 where it 
stated that Labour currently held 46 seats. It should state 43 seats and would be 
amended accordingly.  
 
The Chief Operating Officer gave a short presentation on the IRP Review outlining 
the key points and recommendations made by the IRP.  
 
The report was debated by Committee, and Cllr Reynolds thanked the Independent 
Remuneration Panel on behalf of Members.  
 

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
 

Councillor John Reynolds moved the recommendations in the report. Councillor Rita 
Potter seconded the recommendations. 
 
Resolved: 
That Council be recommended to: 

1. Consider the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel and approve the 
recommendations made by the Panel. 

2. Delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer to amend the Scheme of 
Councillor Allowances according to the decisions taken by Council for 
inclusion in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
8 Update from Monitoring Officer 

David Pattison, Chief Operating Officer, provided an update on the work programme 
and other matters within the scope of the Governance and Ethics Committee’s remit. 
 
The Chief Operating Officer reported that a by-election had been called following the 
resignation of Councillor Banger and would take place on 7 April 2022. As a result of 
this, the pre-election period would now start on 3 March 2022 and guidance on this 
would be circulated to Members and officers.   
 
It was noted that plans for the by-election and May elections were well underway, 
and that a number of recommendations from Members regarding changes to polling 
stations had been made.  
 
The Chief Operating Officer noted that a further freedom of the city nomination had 
been received and would be processed accordingly.  
 
It was noted that improvements to the Councillor Enquiries Unit were underway and 
that although the latest data was positive there was still a long way to go before the 
unit would be entirely fit for purpose.  
 
The Chief Operating Officer noted that the report of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel would go before Council on 2 March 2022, and if agreed, would be adopted 
after the May 2022 election.  
 
The Chief Operating Officer noted that whilst it had been proposed to bring the Code 
of Conduct Annual Report to the meeting it had not been possible due to urgent 
matters. However, members were assured that the draft documentation would be 
circulated to them for consideration and that the item would be brought to the next 
meeting without fail.  
 
It was noted that the social media training had been delivered and further training 
would be provided by the Chief Operating Officer over the next few of weeks.  
 
The update from the Monitoring Officer was debated by Committee, and a number of 
key issues were raised. The Chief Operating Officer responded to questions asked 
and agreed to carry out the following actions: 
 

1. Consider how the authority could show solidarity towards Ukraine through its 
communications and during the meeting of the Council on 2 March 2022. 

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
 

2. Explore the figures provided by the Councillor Enquiries Unit and ensure they 
were accurate. 

3. Reschedule the meeting of the Councillor Enquiries Unit working group. 
 

Resolved: 
1. That the update from the Monitoring Officer be noted. 
 

9 Annual Report on Code of Conduct Matters 
This item was deferred to the next meeting. 
 

Page 6



This report is Public 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

    

 
  

 
Governance and Ethics 
Committee  
 25 March 2022 
 

  
Report title Municipal Calendar of Meetings 2022-2023 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Ian Brookfield  
Leader of the Council  

Accountable director David Pattison, Director of Governance 

Originating service Democratic Services  

Accountable employee Jaswinder Kaur 

Tel 

Email 

Democratic Services Manager  

01902 550320 

Jaswinder.kaur@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be considered 

by 

 

Council   6 April 2022 

 

Recommendations for decision: 

 

The Governance and Ethics Committee recommends that Council: 

 

1. Approves the City of Wolverhampton Council Municipal Calendar of Meetings for 2022-2023 

as detailed in Appendix 1. 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Governance and Ethics Committee is recommended to: 

 

1. Approve consultation with the political groups on the City of Wolverhampton Council 

Municipal Calendar of Meetings for 2022-2023. 

2. Delegate any amendments to the City of Wolverhampton Council Calendar of Meetings for 

2022-2023 to the Chair of Governance Committee in consultation with the Director of 

Governance following consultation with political groups.  

 

 
  

Page 7

Agenda Item No: 5



This report is Public 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

    

1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 To consider a proposed timetable for Council and committee meetings for the next Council 

Municipal Year (2022-2023). 
 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The Full Council Meeting Procedure Rules set out the responsibility of Council to approve a 

programme of Ordinary meetings of the Full Council, the Cabinet, the Scrutiny Board and 
Scrutiny Panels and Regulatory or other committees for the year.  Full Council is asked to 
agree the meeting dates for all meetings to enable the programme to be co-ordinated. 

 
2.2 The proposed Calendar of Meetings for 2022-2023, which was drafted in consultation with 

the responsible officers for each body and addresses issues raised by Councillors and 
officers in relation to the current year’s timetable. 

 
2.3 At the request of the Finance Team the February 2023 Cabinet meeting has been scheduled 

to take place in half term week, this would allow the Finance Team sufficient time to prepare 
the budget report.  

 
2.4   At the request of the Scrutiny Team, Our Council Scrutiny Panel is scheduled to meet on a 

Thursday and Stronger City Economy Scrutiny Panel is scheduled to meet on a Wednesday. 
 
2.5  The Governance and Ethics Committee has been moved to a Thursday afternoon to avoid 

clashes with regional meetings on a Friday.  
 
2.6 Amendments to the programme of meetings can be agreed during the year by the relevant 

bodies or by councillors and officers as set out in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
3.0 Financial implications 
 
3.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendation in this report. 

[GE/31012022/D] 
  
4.0 Legal implications 
 
4.1  There are no legal implications arising from this report.  
 [SZ/02022022/P] 
  

5.0 Equalities implications 

 

5.1 There are no equalities implications arising from this report.  

 

6.0 All Other Implications 
 
6.1 There are no other implications arising from this report.  

 

 

 

Page 8



This report is Public 
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

    

7.0    Schedule of background papers 

 

7.1 None.  

 

8.0 Appendices  

 

8.1  Appendix 1 – Calendar of Meetings 2022 - 2023 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



2022

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

Council & Executive

Council 9
Wed 

(5:45pm)
18a 20 14 2 7 25 1b, 29 17a

Cabinet 13
Wed 

(5:00pm)
25 15 6, 27 7 19 16 14 18 22c 22 26 24

Cabinet (Resources) Panel 13
Wed 

(4:00pm)
25 15 6, 27 7 19 16 14 18 22c 22 26 24

Executive Team 19
Mon 

(5:00pm)
23 13, 27 11 5, 19 3, 17 7, 28 12 9, 23 6, 27 13, 27 17 22

Scrutiny

Scrutiny Board 6
Tues 

(6:00pm)
14 6 1 6 7 7

Adults and Safer City 4
Tues 

(6:00pm)
5 18 17 21

Children, Young People and Families 4
Wed 

(6:00pm)
13 5 11 15

Our Council 4
Thurs 

(6:00pm)
29 13 1 2

Health 5
Thurs 

(1:30pm)
30 22 10 19 23

Stronger City Economy 4
Wed 

(6:00pm)
22 28 30 15

Vibrant and Sustainable City 4
Thurs 

(6:00pm)
4d 29 17 16

Pensions

Pensions Committee 4
Wed 

(10:00am)
29 21 14 22

Pensions Board 4
Tues 

(2:00pm)
19 18 24 25

Municipal Calendar of Meetings 2022 - 2023
No. of 

Meetings

Usual day 

& time

2023

P
age 11



2022

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

Regulatory and Oversight

Audit and Risk Committee 5
Mon 

(2:00pm)
20 25 26 28 6

Planning Committee 6

Tues 

(2:00pm)

(site visits 

10:00am)

24 12 13 15 17 21

Statutory Licensing Committee 5
Wed 

(10:00am)
14 28 9 11 8

Regulatory Committee 5
Wed 

(10:30am)
14 28 9 11 8

Licensing Sub-Committee (as required)
As required  

(10:00am)

Governance and Ethics Committee 7
Thurs 

(2:00am)
7 1 20 24 12 9 16

Partnership Boards

Health and Wellbeing Together 4
Wed 

(12:00pm)
13 12 18 26

Wolverhampton Safeguarding Together Board 3
Thurs 

(2:15pm)
16 8 1 9

Children and Families Together Board* 4
Thurs 

(5:30 pm)
9 8 8 16

Corporate Parenting Board* 6
Thurs 

(5:30 pm)
26 7 22 24 12 23

Schools' Forum* 5
Thurs 

(4:00 pm)
30 29 1 19 16

Wolverhampton SACRE* 4
Days Vary 

(6:00 pm)
16 6 9 18

Safer Wolverhampton Partnership Board* 3
Fri (10:00 

am)
22 21 20

Municipal Calendar of Meetings 2022 - 2023
No. of 

Meetings

Usual day 

& time

2023

P
age 12



2022

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

Advisory Groups

Councillor Development Advisory Group 4
Fri (10:00 

am)
15 14 27 31

Equalities Advisory Group 4
Tue (10:00 

am)
7 6 6 7

Climate Change Advisory Group 4
Tues  (5.00 

pm)
21 20 13 28

Briefings 

Councillor Briefings 6
Tues 

(5:00 pm)
24 19 27 29 31 14

*Attendance not monitored for these meetings

a Annual Council 6pm

b Budget setting 

c  During School Holidays

d Taking place on a Monday 

Municipal Calendar of Meetings 2022 - 2023
No. of 

Meetings

Usual day 

& time

2023

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

  

 

Governance and Ethics 
Committee 
25 March 2022 
 

  
Report title Preparations for Local Elections and East Park 

By-Election 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Paula Brookfield 
Cabinet Member for Governance and Equalities 
 

Accountable director David Pattison, Chief Operating Officer 

Originating service Electoral Services 

Accountable employee Laura Noonan 

Tel 

Email 

Electoral Services Manager 

01902 55 4939 

Laura.noonan@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Election Board 

Cabinet Member Briefing – Governance 

and Ethics 

8 March 2022  

17 March 2022 

 

 

 

Recommendation for action: 

 

The Governance and Ethics Committee is recommended to:  

 

1. Note and provide feedback on the preparations underway for the forthcoming elections.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item No: 6



This report is PUBLIC  

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1 To provide an update on preparations underway for the East Park by-election taking 

place on 7 April 2022, and the local elections taking place on 5 May 2022. 

 

2.0 Background 

2.1 The Proper Officer received a request to hold a by-election in the East Park ward from 

three electors. Pursuant to Section 89 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council 

was required to hold a by-election within 35 working days. The date for the by-election is 

Thursday 7 April 2022.   

2.2 On Thursday 5 May 2022, Local Elections are taking place in Wolverhampton, where a 

third of Councillor seats are up for election. 

 

3.0 Risk management 

3.1 A detailed risk register is reviewed by the Returning Officer and Deputy Returning 

Officers at monthly Election Board meetings. The key risk relating to these elections is 

the overlapping timetables running two local election in close succession. 

3.2 This risk will be mitigated by the dividing the lead responsibilities for each election 

between the Electoral Services Manager and Deputy Electoral Services Manager to 

ensure there are adequate resources to run both polls effectively. 

 

4.0 Covid measures 

4.1 Since the change the national guidance, the health and safety measures have been 

reviewed and the following arrangements will be in place, this will be regularly reviewed 

based on national and expert advice: 

 All employees working at the elections will be required to undertake two lateral 

flow tests: one two days before working and one on the day of work. Anyone who 

tests positive will not be able to work. 

 Candidates and agents will be strongly encouraged to take a lateral flow test prior 

to attending the count.  

 All employees, electors, candidates and agents will be strongly encouraged to 

wear a face covering at electoral events. 

 Electors will be advised that they can bring their own pen or pencil to the polling 

station if they wish.  

Page 16



This report is PUBLIC  

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 Hand sanitiser will be available at various points around venues, and everyone is 

recommended to regularly use it. 

 Polling station staff will be supplied with cleaning equipment to regularly clean polling 
station touchpoints. 

 Cleaners will regularly clear touch points at the count venue. 

 There will be double width tables (at a depth of 29 inches/ 2.4 ft per table) between count 
staff and observers to create some distance.  

 
5.0 East Park by-election 

5.1 The designated polling stations for East Park are available and booked for the by-

election, so there are no changes to the schedule of polling stations.  

5.2 There will be daily opening sessions in Committee Room 3, Civic Centre on Wednesday 

6 April and Thursday 7 April, including the final postal vote opening session at 9pm on 

Thursday 7 April. Candidates and agents are required to notify Electoral Services of 

attendance at sessions at least 24 hours in advance. 

5.3 The verification and count will take place on the ground floor of the Civic Centre on 

Thursday 7 April at 10pm. It is anticipated that the count will finish by 1am.  

 

6.0 Local election 

6.1 There will be daily postal vote opening sessions in the City Suite, Civic Centre every 

weekday from Monday 25 April until election day. Candidates and agents are required to 

notify Electoral Services of attendance at sessions at least 24 hours in advance. 

6.2 The final postal vote opening session will take place at Aldersley at 9pm on election 

night. 

6.3 The count will take place at Aldersley. All wards will be verified at the same time. The 

count for each ward will commence as soon as verification for that ward is complete. It is 

anticipated that the count will finish by 3am at the latest.  

6.4 Please see Appendix 1 for a list of polling stations for the elections. The polling stations 

for East Park are also the same for the by-election. 

 

7.0 Youth elections 

7.1 Electoral Services worked with the Youth Engagement and Co-Production team to run 

the two national youth elections in Wolverhampton. This is the first time that the city has 

conducted the elections in person with all secondary schools taking part and all 11 – 18 

year-olds having the opportunity to cast their vote in person at the polling booth.  Young 

people were voting for two youth MPs to represent them in Youth Parliament, and they 

Page 17



This report is PUBLIC  

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

also voted in Make Your Mark, which gives young people a chance to have a say on the 

biggest issues facing young people.  

7.2 Over 10,000 votes were cast for each ballot, with a turnout of 47%, which is a record high 

for these elections in Wolverhampton. 

7.3 There has been a positive increase in the number of 16- and 17-year-olds registering to 

vote as attainers in the run up to the Youth Election, with 55 young people registering to 

vote in February, which is a significant increase outside of the annual canvass period. 

This means that they will be on the register of electors as an attainer and will be able to 

vote as soon as they turn 18.  

8.0 Financial implications 

8.1 There is a £192,000 budget currently set aside to cover the cost of local elections each 

year. The cost of running local elections to the Council in any year is dependent on 

whether they are standalone or combined with Parliamentary, Police and Crime 

Commissioner or Combined Authority Mayoral elections. Combined elections costs are 

effectively shared, part funded by Government or the Combined Authority. In these 

circumstances significant underspends against the local elections budget are expected 

and provide scope for contributions to the Elections Reserve.  Standalone election costs 

are conversely expected to exceed the local elections budget.  In these years the 

additional costs are to be funded from the Elections Reserve. 

8.2 The cost of the East Park by-election is currently anticipated to be in the region of 

£20,000. The standalone local election in May 2022 is estimated to cost in the region of 

£260,000 at this stage. The combined cost is expected to exceed the local elections 

budget by almost £90,000 and will be funded from the Elections Reserve established 

specifically for this purpose. 

[GE/14032022/Z] 

 

9.0 Legal implications 

9.1 All preparations outlined in this report are in line with the statutory provisions covering the 

delivery of local elections and by-elections. 

[DP/160322/A] 

 

10.0 Equalities implications 

10.1 Planning for these elections complies with the Public-sector equality duty. Reasonable 

adjustments to vote are made available for electors with disabilities in the polling stations, 

and staff working election duties receive substantial training on this. A communications 

Page 18



This report is PUBLIC  

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

campaign is underway to continue to advise electors on the options that they have 

available to them to vote – either in the polling station, by post or by proxy. 

 

11.0 All other implications 

11.1 There are no other implications arising from this report at the current time.  

 

12.0 Schedule of background papers 

12.1 Preparations for May 2022 Local Elections, Governance and Ethics Committee, 14 

January 2022. 

13.0 Appendices 

13.1 Appendix 1 – List of polling stations  

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Polling Station Register Analysis

Polling Station

District Reference District Name

Polling Place

Bert Williams Leisure Centre, Nettlefolds WayBE1

BEA Bilston East

Bilston Methodist Church, Bow Street, Bilston, WolverhamptonBE2

BEB Bilston East

The Lunt Community Centre, Lunt RoadBE3

BEC Bilston East

Holy Trinity Roman Catholic Church, Oxford Street, BilstonBE4

BED Bilston East

Lower Bradley Community Centre, Wallace Road, Bilston, West MidlandsBE5

BEE Bilston East

Bradley Senior Citizens Centre, Wilkinson Avenue, BilstonBE6

BEF Bilston East

Lower Bradley Community Centre, Wallace Road, Bilston, West MidlandsBE7

BEG Bilston East

Temporary Polling Station, Horning Drive, (Off Broadmoor Road), Ettingshall, BilstonBE8

BEH Bilston East

Stowlawn Primary School, The Willows Campus, Green Park AvenueBN1

BNA Bilston North

Villiers Primary School, Prouds LaneBN2

BNB Bilston North

Portobello Community Centre, Hill RoadBN3

BNC Bilston North

Villiers Primary School, Prouds LaneBN4

BND Bilston North

St Chad's Church Hall, Connaught RoadBN5

BNE Bilston North

Bob Jones Community Hub, Bromley StreetBO1

BOA Blakenhall

Royal Air Force Association Club, 26 Goldthorn Road, Near Junction with Grange RoadBO2

BOB Blakenhall

St John`s Methodist Church, 558 Wolverhampton Road East, Parkfield, WolverhamptonBO3

BOC Blakenhall

St John`s Methodist Church, 558 Wolverhampton Road East, Parkfield, WolverhamptonBO4

BOD Blakenhall

Printed no 8 March 2022, Page 1 of 8

Page 21



Polling Station Register Analysis

Polling Station

District Reference District Name

Polling Place

St Teresas RC Primary School, Malins RoadBO5

BOE Blakenhall

Church Hall, Church of St James, Taunton Avenue, Fordhouses, WolverhamptonBU1

BUA Bushbury North

Temple Baptist Church, 30 Three Tuns LaneBU2

BUB Bushbury North

Fordhouses Baptist Church, Winchester RoadBU3

BUC Bushbury North

Northycote Farm, Underhill LaneBU4

BUD Bushbury North

Northwood Park Primary School, Collingwood RoadBU5

BUE Bushbury North

Good Shepherd Centre, Second Avenue, Low HillBY1

BYA Bushbury South and Low Hill

Low Hill Community Hub, Kempthorne AvenueBY2

BYB Bushbury South and Low Hill

Low Hill Community Hub, Kempthorne AvenueBY3

BYC Bushbury South and Low Hill

Good Shepherd Centre, Second Avenue, Low HillBY4

BYD Bushbury South and Low Hill

Tenants Meeting Room, Coven Lodge, Coven StreetBY5

BYE Bushbury South and Low Hill

Bushbury Triangle Management Centre, 74 Stanley RoadBY6

BYF Bushbury South and Low Hill

Bushbury Lane Academy, Ripon RoadBY7

BYG Bushbury South and Low Hill

East Park Methodist Church Hall, Brooklands ParadeEP1

EPA East Park

Eastfield Community Centre, Colliery RoadEP2

EPB East Park

East Park Methodist Church Hall, Brooklands ParadeEP3

EPC East Park

Portobello Community Centre, Hill RoadEP4

EPD East Park

Printed no 8 March 2022, Page 2 of 8

Page 22



Polling Station Register Analysis

Polling Station

District Reference District Name

Polling Place

East Park Library & Neighbourhood Centre, Hurstbourne CrescentEP5

EPE East Park

Memorial Hall, George StreetEP6

EPF East Park

All Saints Community Centre, All Saints RoadEP7

EPG East Park

All Saints Community Centre, All Saints RoadET1

ETA Ettingshall

St Martin`s Church Hall, Parkfield GroveET2

ETB Ettingshall

Memorial Hall, George StreetET3

ETC Ettingshall

Parkfield Primary School, Dimmock Street, ParkfieldET4

ETD Ettingshall

Bilston People`s Centre, Excel Church, Wolverhampton StreetET5

ETE Ettingshall

Temporary Polling Station, Overfield Drive (on car park of Elizabeth Arms PH)ET6

ETF Ettingshall

Neil Dougherty Education and Resource Centre, Masefield RoadFP1

FPA Fallings Park

Fallings Park Methodist Church, Wimborne RoadFP2

FPB Fallings Park

D`Eyncourt Primary School, Mullett Road, WednesfieldFP3

FPC Fallings Park

Long Knowle Community Hub, Wood End RoadFP4

FPD Fallings Park

Long Knowle Community Hub, Wood End RoadFP5

FPE Fallings Park

Fallings Park Primary School, Old Fallings LaneFP6

FPF Fallings Park

Brickkiln Community Centre, Cherry StreetGR1

GRA Graiseley

Bingley Strengthening Families Hub, Norfolk Road, Pennfields, WolverhamptonGR2

GRB Graiseley

Printed no 8 March 2022, Page 3 of 8

Page 23



Polling Station Register Analysis

Polling Station

District Reference District Name

Polling Place

Lea Road Community Church URC, Lea Road community Centre URC, Lea Road, Penn Fields, WolverhamptonGR3

GRC Graiseley

Bradmore Community Centre, Birches Barn RoadGR4

GRD Graiseley

Beckminster Methodist Church, Birches Barn Road, Penn FieldsGR5

GRE Graiseley

St Philip`s Church, Church Road, BradmoreGR6

GRF Graiseley

Woden Primary School, Springfield RoadHT1

HTA Heath Town

Harvest Temple NTCG, 1 Wolverhampton RoadHT2

HTB Heath Town

Holy Trinity Church Hall - Heath Town, Bushbury RoadHT3

HTC Heath Town

St Patrick's RC Church Hall, Rear of St Patrick's RC Church, Wolverhampton Road, (Access also from Lawrence 

Avenue), Wolverhampton

HT4

HTD Heath Town

Wodensfield Primary School, Woden Avenue, WednesfieldHT5

HTE Heath Town

Wednesfield Community Centre, Well LaneHT6

HTF Heath Town

Uplands Junior School, Finchfield Road WestMH1

MHA Merry Hill

Swanmore Community Centre, Swanmore CloseMH2

MHB Merry Hill

St Joseph`s Church Hall, Coalway RoadMH3

MHC Merry Hill

St Joseph`s Church Hall, Coalway RoadMH4

MHD Merry Hill

Warstones Library, Pinfold GroveMH5

MHE Merry Hill

Springdale Methodist, Warstones RoadMH6

MHF Merry Hill

Pendeford Seventh-Day Adventist church, RyefieldOX1

OXA Oxley

Printed no 8 March 2022, Page 4 of 8

Page 24



Polling Station Register Analysis

Polling Station

District Reference District Name

Polling Place

Rakegate Primary School, Rakegate Close, Pedestrian access Sandwell RoadOX2

OXB Oxley

Polish Catholic Centre, Stafford RoadOX3

OXC Oxley

Pendeford Community Hub, Whitburn CloseOX4

OXD Oxley

Pendeford Community Hub, Whitburn CloseOX5

OXE Oxley

Tenants Meeting Room, Upper VauxhallPK1

PKA Park

St Judes Church Hall, St Judes RoadPK2

PKB Park

St Judes CE Primary Academy, Paget RoadPK3

PKC Park

Zion City Tabernacle, Compton RoadPK4

PKD Park

Bantock House, Bantock ParkPK5

PKE Park

St Andrew`s CE Primary School, Coleman StreetPK6

PKF Park

St Michael`s Church, 173 Coalway Road, Penn, WolverhamptonPN1

PNA Penn

Springdale Methodist, Warstones RoadPN2

PNB Penn

Penn United Reformed Church Hall, Penn RoadPN3

PNC Penn

Woodfield Sports and Social Club, Woodfield AvenuePN4

PND Penn

St Aidan's Church, Mount RoadPN5

PNE Penn

Penn United Reformed Church Hall, Penn RoadPN6

PNF Penn

St Bartholomew`s Church Hall, Vicarage RoadPN7

PNG Penn

Printed no 8 March 2022, Page 5 of 8

Page 25



Polling Station Register Analysis

Polling Station

District Reference District Name

Polling Place

Polish Catholic Centre, Stafford RoadSP1

SPA St Peters

Tenants Meeting Room, Firsbrook House, Firsbrook CloseSP2

SPB St Peters

Christian Pentecostal Church Hall, Gorsebrook RoadSP3

SPC St Peters

Gloucester Street Community Centre, Gloucester StreetSP4

SPD St Peters

Newhampton Arts Centre, Dunkley StreetSP5

SPE St Peters

University of Wolverhampton, Chaplaincy Building, Molineux StreetSP6

SPF St Peters

Wolverhampton Art Gallery, Lichfield StreetSP7

SPG St Peters

Hilton Hall Community Centre, Hilton RoadSV1

SVA Spring Vale

Springvale Library, Bevan AvenueSV2

SVB Spring Vale

Holy Trinity Church Hall, Farrington RoadSV3

SVC Spring Vale

Hill Avenue Academy, Hill AvenueSV4

SVD Spring Vale

Hurst Hill Methodist Church, Hurst RoadSV5

SVE Spring Vale

Hurst Hill Methodist Church, Hurst RoadSV6

SVF Spring Vale

Christ The King Church, Pendeford AvenueTR1

TRA Tettenhall Regis

Claregate Primary School, Chester AvenueTR2

TRB Tettenhall Regis

St Michael`s Parish Centre, Room Behind Tettenhall Library, Off Upper Street, Tettenhall, WolverhamptonTR3

TRC Tettenhall Regis

St Michael`s CE School, Lower Street, TettenhallTR4

TRD Tettenhall Regis

Printed no 8 March 2022, Page 6 of 8

Page 26



Polling Station Register Analysis

Polling Station

District Reference District Name

Polling Place

The King`s School, Regis RoadTR5

TRE Tettenhall Regis

The King`s School, Regis RoadTR6

TRF Tettenhall Regis

Church Hall Newman Centre, St Thomas of Canterbury RC Church, Haywood Drive, Tettenhall, WolverhamptonTW1

TWA Tettenhall Wightwick

Temporary Polling Station, Sainsbury`s Local (on car park), 24 Bridgnorth Road, WolverhamptonTW2

TWB Tettenhall Wightwick

Tettenhall Wood United Reformed Church, Mount RoadTW3

TWC Tettenhall Wightwick

Endeavour Academy, Tinacre HillTW4

TWD Tettenhall Wightwick

Church of Good Shepherd, Church hall, Windmill Lane, Castlecroft, WolverhamptonTW5

TWE Tettenhall Wightwick

St Columbas Church Hall, St Columbas Church, Castlecroft RoadTW6

TWF Tettenhall Wightwick

Temporary Polling Station, Sainsbury`s Local (on car park), 24 Bridgnorth Road, WolverhamptonTW7

TWB Tettenhall Wightwick

Wood End Primary School, Wood End RoadWN1

WNA Wednesfield North

Ashmore Park Community Hub, 82 Griffiths DriveWN2

WNB Wednesfield North

Ashmore Park Baptist Church, Griffiths Drive, Ashmore Park, Wednesfield, WolverhamptonWN3

WNC Wednesfield North

St Alban`s CE Primary School, St Alban`s CloseWN4

WND Wednesfield North

Ashmore Park Community Hub, 82 Griffiths DriveWN5

WNE Wednesfield North

Oak Meadow Primary School, Ryan AvenueWN6

WNF Wednesfield North

Seventh Day Adventist Church, Lichfield RoadWS1

WSA Wednesfield South

St Thomas`s CE Primary School, Mattox RoadWS2

WSB Wednesfield South

Printed no 8 March 2022, Page 7 of 8

Page 27



Polling Station Register Analysis

Polling Station

District Reference District Name

Polling Place

Edward The Elder Primary School, Moathouse Lane EastWS3

WSC Wednesfield South

Perry Hall Primary School, Colman AvenueWS4

WSD Wednesfield South

Redeemed Christian Church of God, Stubby Lane, off Lichfield Road, Wednesfield, WolverhamptonWS5

WSE Wednesfield South

Wednesfield Christian Centre, Broad Lane SouthWS6

WSF Wednesfield South

Wednesfield Community Centre, Well LaneWS7

WSG Wednesfield South

Printed no 8 March 2022, Page 8 of 8

Page 28


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	5 Municipal Calendar of Meetings 2022-2023
	Appendix 1 - Calendar of Meetings

	6 Preparations for Local Elections and East Park By-Election
	Appendix 1 for Preparations for Local Elections and East Park By-Election


